o U, WN PR

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37
38
39
40
41
42
43
44
45
46
47

Town of Charlotte
DEVELOPMENT REVIEW BOARD MEETING
Meeting Conducted at Town Hall and via Teleconference
August 6, 2025

DRAFT — subject to approval by the Development Review Board

Development Review Board: Charles Russell (Chair), Gerald Bouchard (Vice Chair), Alexa Lewis,
Doug Paton. Absent: Brandon Tieso. Alternate: Stuart Bennett.

Staff: Rebecca Kaplan, Interim Zoning Administrator.

OTHERS: Paul Plante, David Jeppsen, Miles Waite, Joseph Buswell, Alexa Weitzman.

Posted Agenda:

7:00 PM Call to Order; changes to agenda (if any)

7:02 PM Public Comment (not pertaining to pending applications)

7:05 PM DRB-25-98-CU- Jeppsen —public hearing continued - Replacement of two cabins for one
cabin at 39 Town Way

7:30 PM DRB-25-25-SK- Rectified Whiskey/Aurora Farms LLC — sketch review continued
Storage of barrels of bourbon in existing barn at 4458 Lake Road

7:45 PM Review & Approve Meeting Minutes: draft DRB Minutes, July23, 2025

7:50 PM Agenda items for PC/DRB/CCC August 20 Joint Meeting

8:00 PM Review of DRB Rules of Procedure

8:15PM Deliberations on closed applications (if any)

9:00 PM Adjourn

Call to Order/ changes to agenda:

Chair, Charles Russell called the meeting to order at 7:00pm. Russell suggested tabling the
agenda item Review of Development Review Board (DRB) Rules of Procedure. Russell added
discussion surrounding the organization of documentation distribution.

Public Comment:
None.

DRB-25-98-CU- Jeppsen —public hearing continued - Replacement of two cabins for one cabin at
39 Town Way:

Russell swore in Miles Waite, Hydrogeologist with Waite-Heindel Environmental. Waite
addressed the question as to whether approximately two-thirds of the Jeppsen’s lot is in the Flood
Hazard Overlay District. Waite noted that the flood level is 102 feet and the Jeppsen’s lot goes up to 109
feet. Waite also pointed out that flood level mapping for the Federal Emergency Management Agency
(FEMA) is not reliable. FEMA is in the process of updating their mapping to increase reliability. In
addition, Waite said he had completed a quick survey on the lot. Waite tied into an existing known
location from a civil engineering associate and determined that the ground from the proposed structure is
between 103.09-104.55 feet, well above the 102, FEMA flood zone. Therefore, Section 5.6 in the Land
Use Regulations (LURSs) is not applicable to the application.

Alexa Lewis acknowledged FEMA’s mapping of the Flood Hazard Overlay District is from 2011
and spoke to the use of Letter of Map Amendment (LOMA) to address inaccuracies. Lewis then said if a
LOMA cannot be used to verify that the lot is outside of the Flood Hazard Overlay District, then the
variance process is triggered. Lewis then spoke to the collaboration between national, state and local in



48
49
50
51
52
53
54
55
56
57
58
59
60
61
62
63
64
65
66
67
68
69
70
71
72
73
74
75
76
77
78
79
80
81
82
83
84
85
86
87
88
89
90
91
92
93
94
95
96

page 2 Development Review Board 08/06/2025

the creation of mapping in order to qualify for lower insurance rates. Lewis stated concern over
protecting the town’s eligibility for lower insurance rates and suggested that the Jeppsen’s go through
the LOMA process to ensure the town maintains eligibility. Waite explained the LOMA process, which
involves hiring a licensed surveyor, and said the DRB has the ability accept an alternative method which
Waite has provided. Lewis reiterated concern for eligibility for lower insurance rates. David Jeppsen
said to Lewis’ point, the town has been at risk.

Russell noted that the lot is not in the Special Flood Hazard Area. Russell asked if Waite could
provide the Jeppsen’s with a FEMA Elevation Certificate. Waite said he does not have the credentials to
provide the applicant with such. Waite pointed out that the LOMAs that have been issued for
Thompson’s Point confirm that FEMA mapping is wrong.

Regarding Lewis’ concern, Jeppsen spoke to pending legal cases in Vermont where zoning
boards have been overly burdened by literal interpretation of LURs. Jeppsen said the risk does not seem
significant for 300 square feet of cabin that has supporting data to demonstrate that it is above the flood
level. Lewis suggested consultation with FEMA. Russell proposed the town obtain a legal opinion.
Russell confirmed that Waite issued a memo.

Doug Paton asked about the necessity of the application being classified as a new building versus
a renovation. Jeppsen responded the project requires moving and combining two sleep cabins. Paton
noted that in another town that he had lived in the definition of renovation was maintaining one exterior
wall from the existing structure. Russell said that provision is not included in Charlotte’s LURs.

Gerald Bouchard commented on tree removal and his preference for stumps to be flush with the
ground. Bouchard also provided Jeppsen with information on the alternative of using sonotubes for the
foundation to reduce erosion.

Russell suggested that the DRB review Waite’s memo. Russell reiterated the suggestion to
consult with legal.

MOTION by Alexa Lewis; seconded by Gerald Bouchard, to continue DRB-25-98-CU-
Jeppsen to August 27, 2025, at 7:30pm. VOTE: 4 ayes, motion carried.

DRB-25-25-SK- Rectified Whiskey/Aurora Farms LLC — sketch review continued Storage of
barrels of bourbon in existing barn at 4458 Lake Road:

Paton recused himself. Stuart Bennett served as an alternate.

Joseph Buswell said that he had spoken with the contact at the Agency of Agriculture (Noah
Fuller) and was told that what is being proposed is closer to storing a commodity and would not qualify
for an agricultural exemption. Rather commercial permitting.

Russell recapped comparable uses in the Rural District, composting or agriculture sales and
services. Bouchard said it is a value-added process, without any substantial impact on the town.

Lewis spoke to research efforts and the potential need for permitting from the Vermont Air
Quality and Climate Division and the suggestion to consult with Vermont Division of Liquor Control
(DLC). Lewis stated uncertainty if the application is benign and controllable and potential concern for
safety. In response, Buswell clarified that creating the storage facility would require consultation with
electrical and fire inspectors as a precursor to licensing with the DLC and federal government.

Russell asked about proposed quantity. Buswell said storage would not exceed 12 barrels which
is approximately 600 gallons. Bouchard noted a discrepancy to that which was previously outlined for
quantity, specifically 40 barrels which is approximately 2,200 gallons. Buswell acknowledged that he
may have said this and that it would be possible by stacking barrels. Bouchard asked about sensors to
indicate a leak. Buswell said he has never been required to do so but would be willing to.

Bennett said the intent is to provide Buswell guidance. Bennett asked if this is seen as an
agricultural process. Russell said the Agency of Agriculture did not feel so. Buswell reiterated that he
was told it is closer to the commodity than agriculture. Buswell stated that is his mind it is value-added
agriculture, but the state did not agree. Bennett asked how the Agency of Agriculture’s opinion impacts



97

98

99
100
101
102
103
104
105
106
107
108
109
110
111
112
113
114
115
116
117
118
119
120
121
122
123
124
125
126
127
128
129
130
131
132
133
134
135
136
137
138
139
140
141
142
143
144
145

page 3 Development Review Board 08/06/2025

the DRB’s determination of whether the application is an agricultural process in the Rural District.
Russell said the previous Zoning Administrator (Aaron Brown) determined it was not an agricultural
process. Bennett said Brown’s was a case of first impression and lack of comfortability. Russell did not
agree. Lewis reviewed that conditional use may be in option. Russell added that site plan review is also
required.

Paton asked about plans for bottling. Buswell recapped that bottling was brought up during the
first meeting, but the current intent is storage to obtain a DLC number.

Russell redirected the conversation to comparable uses in the Rural District, composting and
agriculture sales and services. Lewis preferred composting as composting is also an aging process.
Russell noted that both could be used to demonstrate comparability. The DRB agreed that Section 2.3
would be applicable for conditional use review.

Review & Approve Meeting Minutes: draft DRB Minutes, July 23, 2025:
MOTION by Alexa Lewis; seconded by Gerald Bouchard, to approve the DRB meeting
minutes for July 23, 2025, as amended. VOTE: 4 ayes, motion carried.

Agenda items for PC/DRB/CCC August 20 Joint Meeting:

Russell recalled that a previous idea for an agenda item was a mock application but questioned if
that was feasible with a new Town Planner and time constraints. As an alternative, Russell suggested
discussion of the Flood Hazard Overlay district and how to update. Lewis said she would prefer the case
study, one with frontage and road issues. Russell asked if these issues should be a discussion instead of a
mock application. Bouchard suggested that these issues be brought up at a future Joint meeting as the
Planning Commission is involved in the Town Plan update. Related to the Town Plan, Lewis suggested
discussion of what is trying to be achieved in the Rural District with frontage requirements.

Organization of documentation distribution:

Rebecca Kaplan asked if the DRB liked the former Zoning Administrator’s approach of
forwarding applications and materials when received. Russell suggested that applications be forwarded
by email once completed. Discussion and consensus to no longer use Drop Box. Meeting minutes will
be included in the meeting packet.

Paton had a procedure question and asked when abutting neighbors are notified. Kaplan
responded 15 days ahead of the hearing. Lewis pointed out that posting in front of the property subject
to the hearing is also required. Russell read from Land Use Regulations (LURs) that confirmed Lewis’
point. Lewis noted and read from LURSs that indicate that the applicant is to bear the cost of public
warning and notifying adjoining property owners and demonstrate proof of notification. Lewis
suggested that proof of notification be enforced as part of the application. Kaplan agreed to do so.

Deliberations on closed applications (if any):

DRB-25-98-CU- Jeppsen:

Russell questioned if the DRB was comfortable waiving the application requirement for the
FEMA Elevation Certificate pending legal opinion on ability to do so. Kaplan asked what the waiver
would be based on. Russell responded precedent, demonstration that the proposed structure would be
above the 102 feet flood level, and testimony from Waite. Further application items discussed included
tree removal and stumps being cut flush. Square footage being slightly reduced. Added plumbing not to
include a kitchen or increase occupancy.

MOTION by Alexa Lewis; seconded by Gerald Bouchard, to adjourn the meeting. VOTE:
4 ayes, motion carried. The meeting was adjourned at 9:10pm.



page 4 Development Review Board 08/06/2025

146
147  Minutes respectfully submitted.:
148  Nicole Burnell, Recording Secretary




